
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

Notice of Meeting 

Overview and Scrutiny Commission 
Councillor Angell (Chair), Councillor Virgo (Vice-Chair),  
Councillors Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, 
McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Porter, Temperton and Tullett 
Tracey Wright, Parent Governor representative  
Mark Glanville, Parent Governor representative 

Wednesday 6 January 2021, 6.30  - 9.00 pm 
Online only 

 

 

Agenda 

Item Description Page 

1.  Apologies for Absence   

 To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any 
substitute Members. 

 

2.  Minutes  5 - 10 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Commission held on 2 December 2020. 

 

3.  Declarations of Interest and Party Whip   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests and the nature of that interest, including the existence and nature of 
the party whip, in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they are 
withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests the Monitoring 
Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an Affected Interest in a matter must disclose the interest 
to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the meeting when 
the interest is only an affected interest, but the Monitoring Officer should be 
notified of the interest, if not previously notified of it, within 28 days of the 
meeting. 

 

4.  Urgent Items of Business   

 Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent. 

 

5.  Public Participation   

 To receive submissions from members of the public which have been 
submitted in advance in accordance with the Council’s Public Participation 
Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny. 

 



EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 
If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.  Follow the green signs.  Use the stairs 
not the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

6.  Council Plan Overview Report  11 - 34 

 Council Plan Overview Report (CPOR) covering the second quarter of 
2020/21 is attached.  
 
Members of the Commission are asked to submit technical or detailed 
questions in advance of the meeting. 

 

7.  Climate Change follow up   

 The Commission is invited to discuss the findings from the meeting held on 2 
December 2020 which focused on climate change. Progress against the 
climate change action plan will be monitored through the Council Plan 
Overview Report. 
 
The Commission is asked to consider: 

 What are its initial findings? 

 Whether it wishes to formulate any recommendations to support the 
Council’s approach to climate change? 

 

8.  Work Programme Update  35 - 36 

 Overview and Scrutiny Panel Chairs to provide a verbal progress update on 
the work programme. 
 
The Commission to consider any proposed changes to the Overview and 
Scrutiny work programme such as scope, scheduling or duration and its 
potential impact on the delivery of the overall programme. 
 
Members of the Commission are asked to submit suggestions for the 
Overview & Scrutiny Commission meeting schedule for the next 
eighteen months in advance of the meeting. 

 

Date of next meeting 

The next Overview and Scrutiny Commission meeting is scheduled for 17 February 2020. 
The focus of the meeting will be TOPIC. 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media is permitted.  Please 
contact Kirsty Hunt, 01344 353108, kirsty.hunt@bracknell-forest.gov.uk, so that any special 
arrangements can be made. 

Published: 22 December 2020 



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
2 DECEMBER 2020 
6.30  - 9.42 PM 

  

Present: 
Councillors Angell (Chair), Virgo (Vice-Chair), Mrs Birch, Brossard, Gbadebo, Mrs McKenzie-
Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Mossom, Porter, Temperton and Tullett 
Parent Governor representative: Mark Glanville 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Parent Governor representative: Tracey Wright  
 
Executive Members present: 
Councillor Bettison OBE, Leader of the Council  
Councillor D Birch, Executive Member for Adult Services, Health and Housing   
Councillor Brunel-Walker, Executive Member for Economic Development and Regeneration  
Councillor Harrison, Executive Member for Culture, Delivery and Public Protection  
Councillor Mrs Hayes MBE, Executive Member for the Environment  
Councillor Heydon, Executive Member for Transformation and Finance   
Councillor Turrell, Executive Member for Planning and Transport   

Also Present: 
Councillors Brown, Ms Gaw, Mrs Ingham, Leake and Parker 
 
In attendance: 
Timothy Wheadon, Chief Executive 
Kevin Gibbs, Executive Director: Delivery 
Andrew Hunter, Director: Place, Planning & Regeneration 
Damian James, Assistant Director: Contract Services 
Ann Moore, Head of Democratic and Registration Services 
Gareth Jones, Shared Services Manager 
 

44. Minutes and Matters Arising  

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the Commission held on 11 
November 2020 be approved as a correct record, and signed by the Chair.  

45. Declarations of Interest and Party Whip  

There were no declarations made and no indications that members would be 
participating while under the party whip.  

46. Urgent Items of Business  

There were no items of urgent business.  

47. Public Participation  

Under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme for Overview and Scrutiny Rebecca 
Murphy, representing CPRE Berkshire (Campaign to Protect Rural England), spoke 
to the meeting regarding the inclusion of reference to protecting green belt spaces 

3

Item 2



 

within the Council Plan. She encouraged councillors to consult the published report ‘A 
Positive Vision for London’s Green Belt’ available at https://www.cpre.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/11/19.11.04_-_APPG_London_s_Green_Belt_report_-
_A_Positive_Vision_for_London_s_Green_Belt.pdf  

48. Climate Change presentations  

Professor Nigel Arnell, University of Reading addressed the Commission on the 
scientific evidence and effects of climate change. In response to questions Professor 
Arnell gave his opinion that: 

 Two degrees global increase was an average and was not safe as land and 
sea do not increase equality 

 Reduction of emissions was a collective process  

 Total annual rainfall may not change but there would be fewer but wetter days  

 The challenges of supplying water due to changes in rainfall was affected by 
weather over long periods and the management of water levels would be 
considered by water suppliers and the Environment Agency 

 There was no current evidence that climate change would impact the jet 
stream to the extent of altering wind behaviour 

 Carefully managed planting of trees would reduce carbon emissions, send a 
political message and have a local impact through flood management 
schemes 

 Cooling could be managed through designing new buildings but did require 
investment or management 

 International policy was to limit the temperature increase and any change 
from current climate would require investment to respond 

 
Professor Tim Dixon, University of Reading gave an overview of work undertaken by 
other authorities. In response to questions Professor Dixon gave his opinion that: 

 The crowd funding scheme being run in West Berkshire was a good idea as 
allowed residents to invest in climate change bonds 

 there was no easy solution to finding the right balance to different sustainable 
modes of transport  

 detrimental environmental impact caused by disposed personal protection 
equipment counteracts other sustainable changes made during lockdown 

 Reading Climate Change Partnership had tried to encouraged people to make 
pledges and organisations to make pledge on reducing carbon emissions by 
reducing flights for example 

 
Kathryn O’Neal representing Bracknell Climate Change Action Group addressed the 
meeting on their views on climate change measures.  

49. Update from Climate Change review group  

Members of the Climate Change Review Group reported back to the Commission on 
the research undertaken since the March meeting: 
 

 Councillor Mrs McKenzie-Boyle reported on the potential sustainable solutions 
to reduce the pollution along Crowthorne High Street. It was noted that a one-
way system would not be beneficial to either residents or the local 
businesses. Further details would follow on the proposal to install an air 
cleansing planter in the Millennium Garden.  

 

 Councillor Templeton reported that she had attended a webinar on ‘Funding 
the Green Agenda’ which highlighted the scheme run by Ambundance in 

4

https://www.cpre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/19.11.04_-_APPG_London_s_Green_Belt_report_-_A_Positive_Vision_for_London_s_Green_Belt.pdf
https://www.cpre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/19.11.04_-_APPG_London_s_Green_Belt_report_-_A_Positive_Vision_for_London_s_Green_Belt.pdf
https://www.cpre.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/11/19.11.04_-_APPG_London_s_Green_Belt_report_-_A_Positive_Vision_for_London_s_Green_Belt.pdf


 

West Berkshire selling climate change bonds. 72% of local people were 
interested in investing in local green agenda with the same returns as 
National Savings on £5 to £100 investments. Residents had reinvested their 
interest into future projects. This crowd funded scheme had raised £1million. 
Potential project to retrofit schools and enable residents to get involved.  

 

 Councillors Brossard and Temperton had undertaken research on school 
infrastructure across all 38 schools. Recognition that the challenge was 
balancing cost of installing improvements against the savings that could be 
made. Further work would be ongoing to identify opportunities.     

 

 Councillor Mossom had investigated how to reduce the use of water bottles 
and installation of water station in the town centre. He was investigating the 
cost of installation and whether there were grants available to support the 
installation.  

 

 Councillor Virgo highlighted his ambition to reintroduce the tree planting 
scheme which enables residents to pay for trees to be planted locally.  

 
Councillor Virgo concluded that all research would be passed on to the Executive 
Director: Delivery’s team and findings from reviews would be presented to the 
Executive for consideration.  

50. Council’s Strategy and proposals on Climate Change  

Kevin Gibbs, Executive Director: Delivery updated the Commission on the progress 
made towards developing a Climate Change strategy for the Council since the March 
meeting.  
 
In response to questions raised it was noted that: 

 41 projects had been identified within the local Bracknell Forest context 

 the health pandemic had delayed delivery of the climate change strategy as 
officers responded to the national crisis 

 the Council was able to use its procurement power to reduce costs, improve 
insulation and consider sustainability  

 consideration given to native species and long term maintenance 
programmes  

 Executive Director: Delivery considered Bracknell Forest to be ‘active’ rather 
than ‘in progress’ as had been delivering the strategy objectives and its 
projects were integral in the Council’s plans 

 All of the 41 projects were being managed within existing budget and the 
costs associated with staffing resources could be identified for each project 

 Aspirational projects were also in development for which funding would 
continue to be sought when appropriate grants became available 

 Mixture of factors encouraging environmentally friendly development in area 
including planning policy will support the design of the scheme, biodiversity 
response such as provision of bat boxes, section 106 funds might contribute 
to installing sustainable drainage and then building control measures to deal 
with how the building is constructed and insulated.  

 The Council worked with the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) on the green 
economy such as digital infrastructure to enable people to work from home 
across the borough including rural areas, transport grants sought to improve 
the transport network around Bracknell and congestion management 
schemes to improve air quality and contributed to planting schemes.   

5



 

 The Council was working with the Business Improvement District (BID) to 
improve cycle and bus access. 

 Building control measures require increasing standards of efficiency. 

 The projects identified by the Climate Change review groups would be cross 
referenced against the existing projects to feed into the final Strategy and 
added as aspirational projects as appropriate.  

 Priority within the strategy was reducing carbon dioxide and improvements 
against the baseline.  

 Part of the strategy was to enable the role of Councillors as community 
leaders and the community to drive down carbon emissions across the 
borough.  

 
On behalf of the Commission, the Chair thanked the Executive Director: Delivery for 
his team’s hard work to pull the document together and their ongoing work to deliver 
the strategy. Gareth Jones, Shared Services Manager was recognised, in particular, 
for his co-ordination role. 

51. Work Programme Update  

Each Panel Chair provided a verbal update on work programme progress. 
 
Education, Skills and Growth 
 
The Apprentices review was in progress with two meetings held with witnesses and a 
survey issued. Initial findings had been made but further meeting to be held.   
 
Environment and Communities 
 
The Registered Social Landlords review was in progress and meetings scheduled 
with housing officers, public protection officers and then discussions with two 
Registered Social Landlords. The Review Panel were hoping to talk to residents 
about their experiences.  
 
Wellbeing and Finance 
 
The Isolation and Loneliness review evidence pack and review schedule were being 
developed. The Review Panel were hoping to talk with hard to reach residents about 
their experiences by engaging with Involve. 

52. Environment and Planning & Transport portfolios in relation to climate change  

Councillor Mrs Hayes MBE, Executive Member for the Environment joined the 
meeting to answer questions on her portfolio in relation to climate change and she 
stated that: 

 There was a cross party working group on delivering food waste and 
suggesting environmental projects such as using an aerobic digester 

 Bracknell Forest residents were committed to recycling  

 Food waste collections would start in March 2021 
 
Councillor Turrell, Executive Member for Planning and Transport joined the meeting 
to answer questions on his portfolio in relation to climate change and he stated that: 

 Significant national announcements, policies and plans were making change 
a reality for example: Government’s 10 point plan for green industrial 
revolution and first national infrastructure strategy. 

6



 

 Covid has produced opportunities for change such as increased use of 
remote meetings but impact elsewhere such as fear of using public transport 
and increase in plastic waste.  

 The Council had introduced LED lighting, work ongoing with subway lights 
and bollards to LED including traffic light conversion. Installation of electric 
vehicle charging points in car parks and investigating other opportunities to 
expand schemes. 

 Use of sustainable materials in highways products using a product matrix 

 Encouraging more sustainable transport use and build on increased interest in 
walking and cycling this year. Improving links between cycle ways network 
across the borough.  

 Combination of approaches to increasing vehicle charging site as on sites 
under direct control electric charging points were being installed at no cost to 
Council whereas on other sites the Council could encourage installation 
through planning process. He stated that he anticipated quick progress once 
demand increased. 

 The borough did not have high levels of particulate pollution but he supported 
the project to promote the reduction of cars idling by the Public Protection 
Partnership.  

 The suggestion to extend the Bikeability scheme to adults was interesting 

 Consideration needed to be given to how vehicles could be charged in estates 
where they were parked away from homes and noted that sometimes lamp 
posts were also positioned away from the kerb which would incur other issues 
if the solution was charging via lamp posts.  

53. Work Programme Update - Review scope  

The Commission agreed that the proposed scope for the Climate Change 
review be approved and the review commissioned. 

CHAIRMAN 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



  Annex A 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
COUNCIL PLAN 
OVERVIEW 
REPORT 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Q2 2020 - 21 
July – September 2020 
 
 
 

Chief Executive: 
Timothy Wheadon 

9

Item 6



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 2 

Contents 
 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary ...................................................... 3 

Section 2: Budget Position .............................................................................. 6 

Section 3: Strategic Themes ........................................................................... 6 

Value for money .............................................................................................10 

A strong and resilient economy ........................ Error! Bookmark not defined. 

People have the life skills and education opportunities they need to thrive ....13 

People will live active and healthy lifestyles ..... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

A clean, green, growing and sustainable place ..............................................18 

Strong, safe, supportive and self-reliant communities ....................................19 

Section 4: Corporate Health ...........................................................................21 

a) Summary of People ....................................................................................21 

b) Summary of Complaints .............................................................................23 

c) Strategic Risks and Audits .........................................................................23 

 

Key  
 

 

Performance is very good 

 

Performance is causing concern 

 

Performance is weak 

 RAG rating not applicable  

 Missing data 

 Missing target 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 3 

Section 1: Chief Executive’s Commentary 
 

1 Introduction  
 
1.1 This report sets out an overview of the council’s performance for the second quarter 

of 2020/21 (July - August 2020).  The purpose is to formally provide the Executive 
with a high-level summary of key achievements, and to highlight areas where 
performance was not matching targets or expectations, along with any remedial 
action that is being taken.  It complements the detailed Quarterly Service Reports 
(QSRs) and is based upon the performance data that is available to all Members 
online. 
 

1.2 As everyone will know the council continues to function in the context of the Covid-19 
pandemic and many Members and staff have been focused on leading our 
community response.  Some actions in the departmental service plans have been put 
on hold, deferred, or modified. Nevertheless, at the end of the second quarter 
progress showed:  
 

▪ 98 actions (84%) are green (16 complete, 77 in progress, 5 not started or parked)  

▪ 17 actions (15%) are amber (14 in progress, 3 not started or parked) 

▪ 1 action (1%) is red (and in progress) 
 
1.3 Section 3 of this report contains information on the performance indicators across the 

council for each of the strategic themes.  Again, the picture was positive particularly 
in the face of the Covid-19 pandemic. Of course, in a number of the “red” cases, the 
indicator is meaningless in relation to performance.  Obvious examples include 
attendances at libraries and sport and leisure facilities which were open at reduced 
capacity.  The status for the key indicators in the Council Plan in the second quarter 
is: 

 

▪ 25 (71%) green 

▪ 0 (0%) amber 

▪ 10 (29%) red 
 

20 further indicators have no set target or data is currently unavailable. 
 

2. Overview of Q2 and what went especially well 
 
2.1 Putting these obvious challenges to one side, teams delivered services to a high 

standard during the period, especially in response to Covid-19.  I have highlighted 
here a small selection of examples from across the organisation. 

 
2.2  The national lockdown in March fundamentally changed the delivery of services 

within Bracknell Forest.  Service areas implemented business continuity plans with 
the vast majority operating as closely as possible to business as usual.  Whereas in 
quarter one, the organisation was dealing with the additional work that the Covid-19 
emergency placed on the services, quarter two has allowed services to normalise 
this overlay and in most cases establish a “new normal”. 

 
2.3 Staff have continued to work effectively almost exclusively from home as their base.  

In service areas such as social work, environmental health, waste collection and 
disposal, highways, landscape and many others which are not exclusively office 
based the impact on services has been contained and, in many cases, will not have 

11



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 4 

been noticed by residents.  A small number of staff continue to work from Time 
Square, although most activities are now being undertaken mainly electronically.   

 
 
2.4 IT continues to be the core of this new way of working and the system continues to 

work well.  However, whilst our core services have functioned at a high level, the 
broadband connectivity that staff and Members have at their homes has had the most 
impact on the quality of access that users are experiencing.  Within the LEP, future 
connectivity and the transition to 5G is an increasingly important issue and the 
Council is central to these discussions with Cllr Marc Brunel-Walker representing us 
on the LEP Forum and the Chief Executive a member of the LEP Board. 

 
2.5 That said, the work to continue to move services to the cloud have continued.  The 

intranet has been rebuilt in MS SharePoint, allowing the documents on the intranet 
and documents in the new electronic document and records management system 
(EDRMS) to use the same technology and making the information in the council more 
accessible and secure.  

 
2.6 Our Public Health team continue to do a remarkable job through these unknown 

times, helping protect the safety and well-being of our staff and residents.  The key 
performance indicator in adult social care, which looks at the Delayed Transfers of 
Care from the Acute Hospital (DTOC) was suspended at the beginning of the 
Pandemic in line with Government Guidance and we have implemented a new way of 
expediting discharges via Trusted Assessors and the Discharge to Assess approach 
in a more agile way, which has not compromised our performance.  The strengths of 
this approach will be adapted into future practice. 

 
2.7 Our commissioning team also continue to work in close partnership with our 

colleagues in East Berkshire to establish a robust and effective set of support 
arrangements for care providers.  Forestcare and EDS teams continue to provide out 
of hours support for our residents and all five other Berkshire Councils signed up to a 
renewed EDS Contract during the quarter. 

 
2.8 The Customer Services Team, in addition to dealing with higher volume of incoming 

calls have also been making regular welfare calls to more than 2,000 vulnerable or 
shielding residents.  Digital Services have created multiple pages on the website and 
intranet in relation to Covid 19, as well as producing numerous forms for managing 
enquiries and welfare calls to vulnerable people.    

 
2.9 Schools re-opened from the 1 June following government guidance for specified year 

groups.  Since then all schools are now fully open from the 3 September again in line 
with government guidance.  School leaders and staff have worked tirelessly to ensure 
that children return to school in a safe environment where their needs can be met.   

 
2.10 Administration of the government’s business grant schemes continued into the 

second quarter.  Almost all claims were dealt with and settled or rejected as 
appropriate by the Government’s cut-off date of 31 August.  In total, the Revenues 
Team with help from the Finance and Business Support Team has successfully 
completed the payment of £11m to over 882 small business since the grant schemes 
were announced by central government.  

 
2.11 Whilst there has been an inevitable focus on Covid-19, progress has continued to be 

made on matters of strategic importance to the council, notably the Property Joint 
Venture and the Heathlands Care Home.  Following the appointment of Countryside 
as preferred partner in July, work has continued throughout Q2 to complete the legal 
agreements and the initial JV Business Plan for consideration by Members in the 
Autumn.  Construction has started at Heathlands and the ground-breaking ceremony 

12



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 5 

took place on 8 September.  An approach to provider arrangements has been agreed 
and procurement activity will commence in Q3. 

 
2.12 The A322 Downshire Way dual-carriageway scheme has also been completed and is 

operating well.  Work continues on the improvements to the A3095 Crowthorne Road 
highway improvement scheme cover the period an extended road closure was 
successfully managed to enable key works to take place before the restart of schools 
in September. 

 
2.13 Close collaboration with the Lexicon has achieved a positive reopening of most 

shops and premises with relatively good performance during the July/August period.  
Increasing direct engagement with local businesses and implementation on Covid-19 
safety measures have continued throughout the quarter with work across the 
borough taking place. 

 
2.14 In picking out these highlights there is a real danger of overlooking the special efforts 

of teams who are not mentioned.  The simple fact is that the whole organisation has 
responded magnificently.  There have inevitably been challenges and some 
hiccoughs and some service levels may not have met some resident’s expectations.  
However, many of these cases have been a direct result of policy changes by 
national government or national delays in providing guidance for the implementation 
of initiatives that had been announced as ready to go. 

 

What are we doing about things not going so well? 
 
3.1 The council’s financial position has been significantly affected by additional costs and 

income losses directly related to the pandemic.  Financial monitoring arrangements 
were revised significantly to reflect the unprecedented level of uncertainty in the 
current year and are now focused on tracking against predicted best and worst-case 
scenarios.  Thus far, however, financial support from Government has matched the 
public statements and looks likely to cover all additional costs. 

 
3.2 Covid-19 has unsurprisingly presented some serious challenges, especially with 

required changes in ways of working, reduced staff on site, huge increase in visitor 
numbers to the parks and a big increase in litter and other forms of anti-social 
behaviour.  Anti-littering posters have been positioned in problem spots in parks and 
car parks, to send out the clear message that people’s rubbish is their responsibility 
and they must take their litter home.  This is part of a wider campaign to tackle anti-
social behaviour in the borough, which has increased in recent months. 

 
Forward Look 
 
Going forward, the council’s strategic objectives will continue to progress in the coming 
weeks albeit within the constraints of the Covid-19 restrictions and in the context of the 
council’s community response to Covid-19.  It is important that we retain our focus on the 
issues that present to us in Bracknell Forest as we have done throughout the pandemic.  An 
important renewal strategy has been agreed which will support the strategic direction for the 
coming months drawing together the financial and Covid-19 recovery strategies and the 
Council Plan objectives. 

 

Timothy Wheadon 
Chief Executive 

13



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 6 

Section 2: Budget Position  

 
REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING 

The monthly monitoring returns are set out in detail in each directorate’s Quarterly Service 
Report (QSR).   

Due to the impact of the pandemic on the current years’ budget and the resulting 
uncertainty, a range of potential outcomes have been considered.  The returns now include 
estimated best- and worst-case scenarios which reflect actual expenditure to date plus a 
range of financial predictions from Assistant Directors covering the remainder of the year.  
Across the Council, variances have been identified indicating expenditure is within budget 
(Best Case) or up to £1.721m above the approved budget (Worst Case), after taking into 
account the corporate contingency (£1.930m), unspent government funding for Covid-19 
(£6.509m) and estimated Government support for income losses in relevant areas. 

Since quarter 2 figures were reported to CMT, additional Government grant funding for 
Covid-19 has been confirmed (£1.180m) which is expected to be received on 16 November.  
The updated position is therefore a potential £0.541m overspend under the worst-case 
scenario. 

Key information around directorate variances being reported follows. It should be noted that 
this position is being reported before the financial implications of the national lockdown 
announced to commence on 5 November have been specifically considered so is likely to 
change, possibly significantly. 

 

14



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 7 

 

 

 

15



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 8 

 

 

 

16



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 9 

 

17



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 10 

Section 3: Strategic Themes 

Value for money 

 

18



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 11 

 

 

19



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 12 

Economic resilience 

 

20



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 13 

 
 
 

 

21



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 14 

Education and skills 

 

22



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 15 

 
 

 
 
 

23



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 16 

Caring for you and your family 

 

24



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 17 

 
 

 
 

 

25



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 18 

Protecting and enhancing our environment 

 
 

 

26



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 19 

Communities 

 

27



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 20 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

28



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 21 

Section 4: Corporate Health  

 

a) Summary of People  
 

Staff Turnover 
 

Department 
Previous 
Figure* 

For the last 
4 quarters 

Notes 

People 13.7% 12.96%  

Delivery 8.08% 6.09%  

Finance 8.65% 9%  

 

PPR 

 

10.97% 6.21%  

OD, Transformation and HR 12.5% 11.9%  

Chief Executive’s Office 11.9% 10.5%  

Total Voluntary Turnover 13.7% 12.96%  

    * This figure relates to the previous 4 quarters and is taken from the preceding CPOR.  

 
Comparator data % 

Total voluntary turnover for BFC, 2019/20:                         11.9% 

Average voluntary turnover rate UK public sector 2016:                     10.0% 

Average Local Government England voluntary turnover 2016:   14.0% 

    (Source: XPertHR Staff Turnover Rates and Cost Survey 2016 and LGA Workforce Survey 2016) 

29



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 22 

Staff Sickness 
 

Department 
Quarter 2 

2020/21 (days 
per employee) 

Previous Financial 
Year (Actual 

Average days per 
employee) 

2020/21 Annual 
Average (days 
per employee) 

Notes 

People 1.34 9.38 5.5  

Delivery 1.31 6.61 6.57  

Finance 0.59 4.06 2.15  

 

PPR 

 

0.84 8.29 4.6 

 

OD, Transformation 
and HR 

0.21 2.17 0.78 
 

Chief Executive’s 
Office 

1.16 8.28 5.35 
 

Total staff sickness 
excluding maintained 
schools 

1.34 9.38 5.5 

 

 
 

Comparator data All employees, average days sickness 
absence per employee 

Bracknell Forest Council 2019/20                               8.28 days 

English Local Authorities 2017/18       8.6 days 

(Source: Local Government Workforce Survey 2017/18) 

 
People 
Sickness absence has reduced slightly over the last quarter with a number of areas 

experiencing a reduction in sickness most noticeably Children’s Social Care. However, there 

was a sharp rise in sickness absence across Early Help & Communities this quarter. Covid-

19 related sickness absence is now at very low levels across the Directorate. 

Delivery 
Sickness absence has significantly reduced over the last quarter in all areas of the 

Directorate. Covid-19 related sickness absence has reduced to very low levels within the 

Department. Sickness levels do normally reduce in the summer months, once figures for 

next quarter are known we will be able to gauge better if this an ongoing trend. The 

Directorate is for now on target to be under the Authority figure for last year.  

Central 
Sickness absence has reduced slightly over the last quarter and remains at low levels 

compared to the overall figure for the Authority. Covid-19 related sickness absence is also 

very low across the department.  

 
 

30



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 23 

b) Summary of Complaints  
 

Department Type of 
complaint 

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 
Total 

cumulative 
complaints 

Outcome of all complaints received year 
to date 

People: Adults Statutory 

12 4    

1 – in progress  
0 – upheld/fully substantiated 
7 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
6 – not upheld/not substantiated 
1 – no finding made 
1 – external investigation 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 2    
 

People: Childrens Statutory stage 1 

11 13    

1 – in progress 
0 – upheld/fully substantiated 
15 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
6 – not upheld/not substantiated 
1 - no finding made 
1 – proceeded to stage 2 

Statutory stage 2 
1 1    

1 – in progress 
1 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
0 – not upheld/not substantiated 

Statutory stage 3 0 0     

Stage 2 
3 2    

1 – upheld 
3 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
1 – not upheld/not substantiated 

Stage 3 
1 1    

1 – upheld 
1 – partially upheld 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

3 1    
1 – upheld 
2 – Partially 
1 – not upheld 

People: Housing 

Stage 2 1 0    1 – not upheld 

Stage 3 0 0     

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 0    
 

Central Stage 2 

6 2    

1 – in progress 
0 – partially upheld/partially substantiated 
1 – not upheld 
4 - upheld 
2 – proceeded to stage 3 

Stage 3 
1 1    

1 – in progress 
1 – not upheld 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 1    
1 – not upheld 

Delivery Stage 2 0 0     

Stage 3 
1 1    

1 – in progress 
1 – proceeded to LGO 

Local 
Government 
Ombudsman 

0 1    

1 – not upheld 

 
People: Adults 
There were 6 complaints in quarter 2. Compared to this time last year, the figure is down 
from 19. This is 13 fewer.   
 
People: Childrens 
There were 18 complaints in quarter 2. Compared to this time last year, the figure is down 
from 23 This is 5 fewer.   
 
Central 
There were 4 complaints in quarter 2. Compared to this time last year, the figure is up from 1 
This is 3 more.   

31



 

 
CPOR – Quarter 2 2020/21  Page 24 

Delivery 
There were 2 complaints in quarter 2. Compared to this time last year, the figure is up from 1 
This is 1 more.   
 

c) Strategic Risks and Audits 
 

The Register was last reviewed by the Strategic Risk Management Group and the Corporate 
Management Team on 11th and 26th August respectively and the following key changes were 
made. 
 

 The need to include a separate risk around demand for children’s services was 
identified. Work is in progress to agree the wording for this risk and mitigating actions 
in consultation with the senior officers for the relevant areas. 

 Increasing Risk 3 on Brexit to reflect a likelihood score of 5. 

 The adult supply chain risk 6 has been increased for both unmitigated, current 
residual and target risk score reflecting the changing risk environment under Covid-
19. 

 Increasing the current residual and target risk scores risk score for Risk 7 because 
the Government’s guidance has been that the full suite of safeguarding measures 
could not be delivered due to Covid-19. 

 Reducing Risk 10 on information security following the outcome of the inspection 
from the Information Commissioner. 

 To remove the housing risk as mitigating measures to address the risk have largely 
been implemented reducing the likelihood of this risk significantly. 

 
Two internal audit reports were issued with a partial assurance opinion during quarter 2. 
These were for Breakthrough where a major recommendation was raised relating to 
administration and stages being missed from the customer journey and mileage and 
essential car users where a major recommendation was raised to review ongoing entitlement 
to the essential car user allowance.  
 

32



Overview and Scrutiny Commission meetings programme  

17 February 2021 Education, Skills and Growth: Apprentices review report due  
Work programme update including: 

 Education, Skills and Growth: Scope for CIL 

 Environment and Communities: Scope for Food Waste  

 Wellbeing and Finance: Scope for next review  
 

2 March 2021 Council Plan Overview Report 
Environment and Communities: RSL review report due 
Wellbeing and Finance: Isolation and Loneliness review report due 
Work programme update 
 

7 April 2021 Brants Bridge update by Fiona Slevin Brown, Executive Managing 
Director – Bracknell Forest, NHS East Berkshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group  
Budget process / workshop of ideas for 2022-23 budget 
Work programme update 
 

26 May2021 Council Plan Overview Report 
Work programme update including scopes for next reviews 
 

8 July 2021 Review reports due  
Work programme update  
 

9 September 2021 Council Plan Overview Report 
Work programme update 
 

7 October 2021 Crime and Disorder Panel 
Work programme update including scopes for next reviews 
 

4 November 2021 Council Plan Overview Report 
Review reports due  
Work programme update  
 

2 December 2021 Work programme update 
 

13 January 2022 Council Plan Overview Report 
Work programme update including scopes of next reviews 
 

27 January 2022 Review reports due  
Work programme update 
 

3 March 2022 Council Plan Overview Report 
Work programme update 
 

7 April 2022 Work programme update including scopes of next reviews 
 

26 May 2022 Council Plan Overview Report 
Review reports due  
Work programme update 
 

33

Item 8



Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme as at November 2020: 

Start date: Education, Skills and Growth Environment and Communities Wellbeing and Finance 

Complete Care Leavers 
 

Burials Pt 1 
 

Digital Access 
(completed as a Commission review in 
July 2020) 

20-21Q3 Apprentices 
Education and Skills 

Registered Social Landlords  
Communities 

 

20-21 Q4 
 

  Isolation and Loneliness  
Caring for you and your family 

21-22 Q1 CIL 
Economic resilience 

Food Waste 
Protecting and enhancing our environment 

Reordering is on hold for: 

 Conclusion of incomplete Healthy 
eating, activity and exercise 

 Mental Health  

 Primary Care Networks 

 Unsafe discharge 

 Topic TBC 

21-22 Q2 
 

  

21-22 Q3 
 

County Lines 
Communities & Education and Skills 

Residential Parking 
Protecting and enhancing our environment 

21-22 Q4   

22-23 Q1 
 

SEND 
Education and Skills 

Integrated Enforcement 
Protecting and enhancing our environment 

22-23 Q2   

22-23 Q3 Governors 
Education and Skills 

Topic TBC 
 

22-23 Q4   

 

34


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Council Plan Overview Report
	8 Work Programme Update

